OCEAN COUNTY SOIL CONSERVATION DISTRICT FORKED RIVER, NEW JERSEY REPORT OF AUDIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Exhibit</u>	PART I	<u>Page</u>
	Independent Auditor's Report	1-2
Α	Statement of Financial Position for the Year Ended June 30, 2010	3
В	Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended June 30, 2010	4-5
С	Statement of Cash Flows - All Funds Combined for the Year Ended June 30, 2010	6
	Notes to Financial Statements	7-13
	Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	14-15
	Roster of Officials	16
	PART II	
Schedule	SUPPLEMENTARY DATA	
1	Schedule of Budget Versus Actual Expenditures - Operating Funds for the Year Ended June 30, 2010	17
2	Schedule of Federal and State Awards for the Year Ended June 30, 2010	18
	<u>PART III</u>	
	GENERAL COMMENTS AND FINDINGS/RECOMMENDATIONS	
	Scope of Audit	19
	General Comments	19-20
	Follow-up of Prior Year Findings	20
	Findings/Recommendations	20
	Acknowledgement	20

AUDITOR'S REPORT OF THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

William E. Antonides and Company

ः Telecopier:

WILLIAM E. ANTONIDES, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A. WILLIAM E. ANTONIDES, JR., C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A.

EDWARD J. SIMONE, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A. BRIAN K. LOGAN, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A. DOROTHY S. GALLAGHER, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A. DONALD F. HILL, C.P.A., P.S.A. CHI-LING LAI. C.P.A., P.S.A. e-mail: antonidescpa@monmouth.com

732-681-4033

Monmouth County Office: 2807 Hurley Pond Road Suite 200 P.O. Box 1137 Wall, New Jersey 07719-1137 732-681-0980

Ocean County Office; 506 Hooper Avenue, Suite B Toms River, New Jersey 08753-7704 732-914-0004

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors Ocean County Soil Conservation District 714 Lacey Road Forked River, NJ 08731

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position - regulatory basis of the various funds and account groups of the Ocean Soil Conservation District (the "District"), in the County of Ocean, State of New Jersey, as of June 30, 2010 and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and the statement of cash flows - regulatory basis for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 1, the District prepares its financial statements on a regulatory basis of accounting prescribed by the State Soil Conservation Committee, New Jersey Department of Agriculture (the "Committee"), which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the assets, liabilities, and net assets and reserves of the District as of June 30, 2010, and the results of its operations for the year then ended, on the basis of accounting described in Note 1.

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated November 30, 2010 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the District taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules of budget versus actual expenditures and federal and state grant activity are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State of New Jersey, Department of Agriculture, State Soil Conservation Committee. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Supervisors, management of the District and the Committee and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

William E. Antonides and Company

Independent Auditors

William E. Antonides, C.P.A
Registered Municipal Accountant

R.M.A. Number 14

November 30, 2010

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Exhibit A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

			Ten	Temporarily Restricted			
		Chapter 251	Grant	Agricultural Development	Equipment		
	Unrestricted	Reserves	Fund	Board	Fund	Subtotal	Total
Assets Current Assets: Cash, Savings and Temporary Investments: Operating Funds	\$ 224,819.33	\$ 2,469,926.83	6	· 69	69	\$ 2,469,926.83	\$ 2,694,746.16
Accounts Receivable: New Jersey Stormwater Aid Grants		9,800.00	26,143.83			9,800.00	9,800.00
Interfunds Total Current Assets	224,819.33	129,273.94 2,609,000.77	26,143.83			129,273.94 2,635,144.60	2,859,963.93
Property, Plant and Equipment: Land and Buildings Vehicles, Furniture and Equipment Less: Accumulated Depreciation Total Property, Plant and Equipment					422,523.45 206,363.14 (277,490.77) 351,395.82	422,523,45 206,363.14 (277,490,77) 351,395,82	422,523.45 206,363.14 (277,490.77) 351,395.82
Total Assets	\$ 224,819.33	\$ 2,609,000.77	\$ 26,143.83	6-9	\$ 351,395.82	\$ 2,986,540.42	\$ 3,211,359.75
Liabilities, Net Assets and Reserves Current Liabilities: Compensated Absence Liability Interfunds Total Liabilities	\$ 103,130.11 103,130.11	\$ 172,902.69	\$ 26,143.83 26,143.83	₩	69	\$ 172,902.69 26,143.83 199,046.52	\$ 172,902.69 129,273.94 302,176.63
Reserves: Reserve for Future Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Act Expenditures Reserve for Future Legal Costs Total Reserves		670,491.50 40,000.00 710,491.50				670,491.50 40,000.00 710,491.50	670,491.50 40,000.00 710,491.50
Net Assets: Unrestricted Net Assets Temporarily Restricted Net Assets Total Net Assets	121,689.22	1,725,606.58			351,395.82 351,395.82	2,077,002.40	121,689.22 2,077,002.40 2,198,691.62
Total Liabilities, Net Assets and Reserves	\$ 224,819.33	\$ 2,609,000.77	\$ 26,143.83	64	\$ 351,395.82	\$ 2,986,540.42	\$ 3,211,359.75

3

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Exhibit B	Sheet 1 of 2
ATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS	FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

	Total	\$ 1,007,731.21 \$1,751.09 12,625.00	24,425.00 2,826.68 35.865.34 1,201,763.46	5,860.00	8,641.00 9,753.98 9,349.72 707.05 8,600.00	45,832.54 32,151.32 3 20,5 00	3,505,00 80.28 186,823.09 31.821.70	1,142.55	6,374.53 6,374.53 826,590.02 3,540.25	50,016.74 70,819.00 37.225.00	3,532.27 165.00 2,583.56
	Subtotal	\$ 1,007,731.21 47,834.35 12,625.00	24,425.00 24,425.00 419.68 35.865.34 1,195,439.72	5,860.00	8,641.00 9,753.98 9,349.72 707.95	45,832.54 32,151.32 330,500	45.00 45.00 186,823.09 31.821.70	1,142.55	2,307,12 6,374,53 826,590.02 3,540.25	50,016.74 70,819.00 37,225,00	3,532.27 165.00 2,558.61
	Equipment Fund	w				32,151.32					
Restricted	Agricultural Development Board	s 1.10	1.10					20 050 1	CC.OCO.1		
Temporarily Restricted	Grant Fund	\$ 12,625.00 66 539 14	79,164.14		8.600.00	45,832.54					
	Chapter 251 Reserves	\$ 1,007,731.21 47,833.25	24,425.00 419.68 35,865.34 1,116,274.48	5,860.00	8,641.00 ¹ 9,753.98 ¹ 9,349.72 ¹ 707.95 ¹	3.305.00	45.00 · 186,823.09 · 31,821.70 •	1,142.551 327.98	6,374.53 6,374.53 826,590.02 3,540.25	50,016.74 70,819.00 37,225.00	3,532.27 1 165.00 1 2,558.61
	Unrestricted	3,916.74	2,407.00				35.28	9500			24.95
	Support and Revenues.	From England Sediment Control Act Fees Interest on Deposits Barnegat Bay Grants CBT (Corp. Bus. Tax) Grant	Requests for Authorization Fees Miscellaneous Non-Cash In-Kind; included as Expenditures Below Total Support and Revenues	Expenditures and Net Assets Released from Restrictions: Accounting Expense Building Expense:	Maintenance Utilities Computer Consulting Computer Equipment Barnegat Bay Grants	CBT (Corp. Bus. Tax) Grant Depreciation Dues and Donations	Education Employee Benefits Insurance	Legal Expense Licenses and Permits Miscellaneous	Office Expense Payroll Payroll Expenses	Payroll 1 ax Annual Employer Pension Contribution Early Retirement Incentive Accrued Liability	Postage and Delivery Printing and Reproduction Reference Material and Publications

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Exhibit B

Sheet 2 of 2

E 30, 2010	
ENDED JUN	
OR THE YEAR	
된	

	J		Temporarily Restricted	Restricted			
	· ·	Chapter 251	Grant	Agricultural Development	Equipment		
Expenditures and Net Assets Released from Restrictions (Continued):	Unrestricted	Reserves	Fund	Board	Fund	Subtotal	Total
Service Contracts State Level Administrative Support	€43	\$ 4,812.37 ° 35.865.34	S	S	cs.	\$ 4,812.37	\$ 4,812.37
Telephone Vehicle Expense		6,117.20				6,117.20	6,117.20
Workshops, Meetings and Training	1.752.15	13,044.03 1				15,644.63	15,644.63
Reserve Adjustment for Soil Erosion and Sediment						1,402,14	67:417°C
Control Act Expenditures		20,815.44				20.815.44	20.815.44
Total Expenditures and Net Assets Released from Restrictions	1,857.38	1,344,772.68	54 432.54	1.050.95	32,151,32	1 432 407 49	1 434 264 87
Excess (Deficiency) of Support and Revenue Over Expenditures Adjustments:	4,466.36	(228,498.20)	24,731.60	(1,049.85)	(32,151.32)	(236,967.77)	(232,501.41) *
Transfers of Net Assets	(5,830.12)	30,561.72	(24.731.60)			5.830.12	
Adjusted Total - Increase (Decrease)	(1,363.76)	(197,936.48)		(1,049.85)	(32,151,32)	(231,137,65)	(232 501 41)
Net Assets July 1, 2009	123,052.98	1,923,543.06		1.049.85	383,547,14	2,308,140.05	2,431,193.03
Net Assets June 30, 2010	\$ 121,689.22	\$ 1,725,606.58	S	25	\$ 351,395.82	\$ 2,077,002.40	\$ 2,198,691.62
							•

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - ALL FUNDS COMBINED

Schedule C

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: Excess of Support and Revenue over Expenditures	\$	(232,501.41)
Adjustments to Reconcile Excess of Support and Revenue Over		
Expenditures to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:		
Depreciation		32,151.32
Reserve for Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Act		,
Expenditures		20,815.44
Change in Assets and Liabilities:		
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable		(12,607.12)
Increase/(Decrease) in Compensated Absence Liability		5,766.49
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities	_	(186,375.28)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash		(186,375.28)
Cash, Savings and Temporary Investments July 1	-	2,881,121.44
Cash, Savings and Temporary Investments June 30	\$_	2,694,746.16

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Ocean County Soil Conservation District is one of fifteen Districts in the State of New Jersey under the auspices of the New Jersey Department of Agriculture. Each District is governed by a Board of Supervisors, which sets policies and performance guidelines. The Districts work closely with the U.S. Soil Conservation Service to promote the wise use of soil and water resources. In 1976 the Districts in New Jersey were mandated to administer Chapter 251, The Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Act of 1975, the objective of which was to prevent erosion and sedimentation from development sites, mitigate impacts to soil resources, and enhance soil quality.

B. Financial Statement Presentation

The District is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. Unrestricted net assets can be expended by the District for any aspect of its operations, at any time, as determined by management. Temporarily restricted net assets are either restricted as to specific program, a specific time period or both, but eventually, will be expended by the District. Permanently restricted net assets can never be expended, but benefit the District through investment earnings on such assets. At June 30, 2010, the District had only unrestricted and temporarily restricted net assets.

C. Basis of Accounting

The accounting policies of the Ocean County Soil Conservation ("the District") conform to generally accepted accounting principles and practices prescribed by the State of New Jersey, Department of Agriculture, State Soil Conservation Committee.

All of the District funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Support and revenue are recognized when they become both measurable and available as net current assets. Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Chapter 251 revenue is recognized when received and Chapter 251 expenses are recognized when incurred.

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net assets, support and revenues and expenditures. Fixed asset purchases are recorded in the fund of acquisition with an appropriate transfer to the equipment fund. Accumulated depreciation is reported on the statement of financial position.

NOTE 1. <u>SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)</u>

D. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates.

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Operating funds and temporary investments include amounts in demand deposits as well as the New Jersey Cash Management Fund. State statutes authorize governmental units to invest in obligations as described in Note 2.

F. Support and Expenses

Contributions and restricted grant revenues are measured at their fair values and are reported as an increase in net assets. The District reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, or if they are designated as support for future periods. When a donor or grantor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

G. Non-cash Support

Federal non-cash support consists of:

<u>Direct Support</u> - District supervisor's travel expenses, per diem, postage and miscellaneous expenses.

<u>Indirect Support</u> - Estimated proportional allocation of State level administrative and technical services.

The amount provided by outside governmental sources to assist in the operation of the District is as follows:

Direct Support \$ 865 Indirect Support \$ 35,000

\$ 35,865

NOTE 1. <u>SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)</u>

H. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the related assets. The principal estimated useful lives used in computing the depreciation provisions are as follows:

Equipment5 yearsVehicles5 yearsFurniture5 yearsBuilding and Improvements40 years

I. Compensated Absences

The District permits certain employees within limits to accumulate unused vacation and sick pay, which may be taken as time off or paid at a later date at an agreed upon rate. It is estimated that the cost of unpaid sick leave at June 30, 2010 was \$172,903, and this amount is accounted for as an expense and liability in the financial statements.

NOTE 2. <u>CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS</u>

A. Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in institutions located in New Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"), or by any other agencies of the United States that insure deposits or the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal five percent of the average daily balance of public funds; or

If the public funds deposited exceed 75 percent of the funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value equal to 100 percent of the amount exceeding 75 percent.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank, the Federal Home Loan Bank Board or a banking institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than \$25,000,000.

At year-end the carrying amount of the District's deposits was \$2,694,746 and the bank balance amount was \$2,698,786. Of this amount \$500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and a collateral pool under New Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act covered the remaining \$2,198,786.

NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. <u>Investments</u>

- a. When authorized by a cash management plan approved pursuant to N.J.S. 40A:5-14, the District may use available funds for the purchase of the following types of securities which, if suitable for registry, may be registered in the name of the District:
 - (1) Bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United States.
 - (2) Government money market mutual funds.
 - (3) Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other external factor.
 - (4) Bonds or other obligations of the County and municipalities in which the District is located, or bonds or other obligations of school districts of which the District is a part or within which the school district is located.
 - (5) Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investments, New Jersey Department of the Treasury.
 - (6) Local government investment pools.
 - (7) Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, c. 281; or
 - (8) Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if:
 - (a) the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of this section;
 - (b) the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;
 - (c) the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;
 - (d) the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, c. 236 (C.17:9-41);
 - (e) a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security of collateral is executed.
- b. Any investment instruments in which the security is not physically held by the District shall be covered by a third party custodial agreement, which shall provide for the designation of such investments in the name of the District and prevent unauthorized use of such investments.
 - c. Investments are further regulated and restricted in accordance with N.J.S. 40A:5-15.1.

Other than cash equivalents that would otherwise qualify as investments, except for their maturity or the withdrawal provisions of their deposit, the District had no investments in qualified securities at June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

C. <u>Cash Management Plan</u>

In accordance with N.J.S. 40A:5-14, every district shall adopt a cash management plan and shall deposit and invest its funds pursuant to that plan. The plan shall be approved annually by majority vote of the governing body and may be modified from time to time in order to reflect changes in federal or state law or regulations. The chief financial officer shall be charged with administering the plan.

When an investment in bonds maturing in more than one year is authorized, the maturity of those bonds shall approximate the prospective use of the funds invested.

The plan also requires a monthly report to the governing body summarizing all investments made or redeemed since the previous report and shall include, at a minimum, the specific detailed information as set forth in the statute.

D. Credit Risk Categories

All bank deposits and investments as of the balance sheet date are classified as to credit risk by the following categories described below:

	Bank I	<u> Balance</u>
		2009
Depository Account		
Insured:		
FDIC	\$ 500,000	\$ 501,050
GUDPA	<u>2,198,786</u>	<u>2,382,398</u>
	\$ <u>2,698,786</u>	\$ <u>2,883,448</u>

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk.

State law limits investments as noted above.

NOTE 3. PENSION PLANS

The District contributes to a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, the Public Employees' Retirement System, which is administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. This plan provides retirement, disability, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. The plan has a Board of Trustees that implement benefit provisions, which are established and amended by State statute. The Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and requirement supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to:

NOTE 3. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

State of New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. Plan members enrolled in the Public Employees' Retirement System are required to contribute 5.5% of their annual covered salary. The District's contributions to the plan, equal to the required contributions for each year, were as follows:

<u>Year</u>	PERS
2010	\$ 108,044
2009	96,696
2008	84,290

NOTE 4. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 3, the District provides health care benefits in accordance with the personnel manual revised by the Board of Supervisors in July of 1993 to employees with 25 years of service to the District. Currently, two (2) individuals are receiving these benefits. During the year, expenditures of \$13,521 were recognized for post retirement health care.

NOTE 5. RESERVE FOR FUTURE SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL ACT EXPENDITURES

The Reserve for Future Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Act Expenditures is established to account for all related costs of future site inspections for projects currently in progress, for which fees under the act have previously been collected. The current balance of the reserve is calculated by multiplying the certification fees collected during the current and two preceding years by the following percentages:

Certi	fication Fees		Reserve Balance
Collect	ed to June 30,		<u>June 30, 2010</u>
2008	\$ 919,767	x 10% =	\$ 91,977
2009	877,112	x 20% =	175,422
2010	1,007,731	x 40% =	403,092
Reserve	e Balance June 30, 201	0	\$ 670.491

NOTE 6. RESERVE FOR FUTURE LEGAL COSTS

The Reserve for Future Legal Costs provides the District with funds necessary to pay for future legal costs incurred as a result of current Chapter 251 operations. The balance in this reserve account has been estimated to be \$40,000.

NOTE 7. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Pending Litigation

It is the opinion of the District officials that there is no litigation threatened or pending that would materially affect the financial position of the District and they believe that negligence and other types of liability suits, of which the District is aware, appear to be within the stated policy limits and would be deferred by the respective carriers.

William E. Antonides and Company

Telecopier: 732-681-4033

WILLIAM E. ANTONIDES, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A. WILLIAM E. ANTONIDES, JR., C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A.

EDWARD J. SIMONE, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A. BRIAN K. LOGAN, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A. DOROTHY S. GALLAGHER, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A. DONALD F. HILL, C.P.A., P.S.A. CHI-LING LAI, C.P.A., P.S.A. e-mail: antonidescpa@monmouth.com Monmouth County Office; 2807 Hurley Pond Road Suite 200 P.O. Box 1137 Wall, New Jersey 07719-1137 732-681-0980

Ocean County Office: 506 Hooper Avenua, Suite B Toms River, New Jersey 08753-7704 732-914-0004

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors Ocean County Soil Conservation District 714 Lacey Road Forked River, NJ 08731

We have audited the financial statements of the Ocean Soil Conservation District (the "District"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated November 30, 2010. Our report disclosed that, as described in Note 1 to the regulatory basis financial statements, the District prepares its financial statements on a basis of accounting prescribed by the State Soil Conservation Committee, New Jersey Department of Agriculture, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Continued)

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purposes described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations and contracts, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Supervisors, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass through entities and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Supervisors, the District's management and the Committee and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

William E. Antonides and Company Independent Auditors

November 30, 2010

ROSTER OF OFFICIALS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	Term Expires
William J. Pollock	Chairman	6/30/12
Anthony DiLodovico	Vice Chairman	6/30/12
Charlene H. Costaris	Treasurer	6/30/13
Michael Gross	Secretary	6/30/11
Martha Maxwell-Doyle	Supervisor	6/30/13
David B. Friedman	District Director	
William Slack	Assistant District Director	
Barbara G. Blaine	Administrative Officer	

There was a Public Officials' Liability Policy in the amount of \$2,000,000 (deductible \$5,000) for Directors and Officers. The policy was issued by Darwin National Assurance Company. IN addition, there was an Employee Theft-Blanket, Forgery or Alteration Policy in the amount of \$200,000 (deductible \$500) for employees. The policy was issued by Selective Insurance Company of America.

PART II

SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SCHEDULE OF BUDGET VERSUS ACTUAL EXPENDITURES - OPERATING FUNDS

Schedule 1

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

	Ün	Unrestricted		Temporarily Restricted	
1	Actual	Under/(Over) Budget	Modified Budget	Actual	Under/(Over) Budget
Expenditures:	i				
Capital Expense Account	54	(-)	\$ 40,000.00	₩	\$ 40,000.00
Accounting Expense Building Expense:			5,500.00	5,860.00	(360.00)
Maintenance.			1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
Mannenance Thilities			5,000.00	8,641.00	(3,641.00)
Computer Consultino			12,000.00	9,753.98	2,246.02
Computer Equipment			3,000.00	2,349.72 707 05	(6,349.72)
Barnegat Bay Grants	8.600.00	(8.600.00)	7,000,0	65.101	C0.767,C
CBT (Corp. Bus. Tax) Grant	45,832.54	(45,832.54)	35,000.00		35,000,00
Depreciation			35,000.00	32,151,32	2 848 68
Dues and Donations			2,000.00	3,305,00	(1 305 00)
Education	35.28	(35.28)	15,000.00	45.00	14.955.00
Employee Benefits			173,537.00	186.823.09	(13.286.09)
Engineering Consulting			2,000.00		2.000.00
Fee Reimbursement Expenditures			8,000.00		8 000 000 K
Insurance			29,000.00	31.821.70	(2 821 70)
Legal Expense			2,500.00	1,142.55	1 357 45
Licenses and Permits			1,500.00	327.98	1 177 02
Miscellaneous	45.00	(45.00)	1,000.00	1,456.17	(456 17)
Office Expense			10,000.00	6,374.53	3.625.47
Office Equipment			2,000.00		2.000.00
Payroll			791,267.00	826,590.02	(35 323 02)
Payroll Expenses				3,540,25	(3.540.25)
Payroll Tax			59.228.00	50 016 74	9 711 76
Annual Employer Pension Contribution			59.471.00	70 819 00	7,211.20
Early Retirement Incentive Accrued Liability			37,225.00	37.225.00	(00.01.6.11)
Postage and Delivery			8,000.00	3.532.27	4 467 73
Printing and Reproduction			1,500.00	165.00	1 335 00
Reference Material and Publications	24.95	(24.95)	1,500.00	2.558.61	(1.058.61)
Service Contracts		•	3,000.00	4,812.37	(1.812.37)
State Level Administrative and Technical Support			•	35.865.34	(45.865.34)
Telephone			9,000.00	6.117.20	7 887 80
Vehicle Expense			20,200.00	15,644.63	4.555.37
Vehicle Purchase			10,000.00		10,000,00
Workshops, Meetings and Training	1,752.15	(1,752.15)	2,000.00	1,462.14	537.86
Total Expenditures	\$ 56,289.92	\$ (56,289.92)	\$ 1,388,428.00	\$ 1,356,108.56	\$ 32,319.44

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

Schedule 2

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Total Disbursements	\$ 35,865.34	94,707.59	11,225.00	\$ 141,797.93
2010 Disbursements	\$ 35,865.34	45,832.54	8,600.00	\$ 90,297.88
Program Award Amount	\$ 35,865.34	256,150.00	12,500.00	\$ 304,515.34
Federal CFDA/ Account Number	*	RPO7-057	CE-98212308	
Federal/State Grantor Program Title	State Level Administrative and Technical Support	Department of Environmental Protection: Division of Watershed Management: CBT Grant-In-Aid Program: Sub-Watershed Action Project in the Long Swamp Creek Watershed	Barnegat Bay National Estuary Program: Rain Gardens as Outdoor Classrooms in Barnegat Bay Watershed (Mini Grant and Blue Card II)	Total Federal and State Assistance

See Independent Auditor's Report.

Basis of Presentation: The Schedule of Federal and State Awards includes the federal and state grant activity of the Ocean County Soil Conservation District on the accrual basis of accounting. The information presented in this schedule may differ from the information contained in the basic financial statements.

* - Not Applicable

GENERAL COMMENTS AND FINDINGS/RECOMMENDATIONS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

An audit of the financial accounts and transactions of the Ocean County Soil Conservation District (the "District") for the year ended June 30, 2010, has recently been completed. The results of the audit are herewith set forth.

SCOPE OF AUDIT

The audit covered all financial transactions of the District.

The audit did not and could not determine the character of services rendered for which payment had been made or for which reserves had been set up, nor could it determine the character, proper price or quantity of materials supplied for which claims had been passed. These details were necessarily covered by the internal review and control before approval of such claims by the District.

Cash on hand was counted and cash balances were reconciled with independent certifications obtained directly from the depositories.

The support revenues and expenditures for the District as shown on the Statement of Support Revenues and Expenditures are presented as recorded in the District's records.

GENERAL COMMENTS

Contracts and Agreements Required to be Advertised per N.J.S. 40A:11-4a

N.J.S. 40A:11-4a states "Every contract awarded by the contracting agent for the provision or performance of any goods or services, the cost of which in the aggregate exceeds the bid threshold, shall be awarded only by resolution of the governing body of the contracting unit to the lowest responsible bidder after public advertising for bids and bidding therefor, except as is provided otherwise in this act or specifically by any other law." The amount set forth pursuant to the above statute was \$21,000 for the period audited.

The District's supervisors have the responsibility of determining whether the expenditures in any category will exceed the above statutory limitation within the fiscal year. Where questions arise as to whether any contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the District Counsel's opinion should be sought before a commitment is made.

The minutes indicate that resolutions were adopted and advertised authorizing the awarding of contracts or agreements for "Professional Services" per N.J.S. 40A:11-5.

Inasmuch as the system of records did not provide for an accumulation of payments for categories for the performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies, the results of such an accumulation could not reasonably be ascertained. Disbursements were reviewed, however, to determine whether any clear cut violations existed.

The compliance review of expenditures did not reveal any individual payments or contracts in excess of the statutory limit other than those where bids had been previously sought by public advertisement or where a resolution had been previously adopted under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:11-4.

Contracts or Agreements not Required to be Advertised per N.J.S. 40A:11-6.1

N.J.S. 40A:11-6.1 states "For all contracts that in the aggregate are less than the bid threshold but 15 percent or more of that amount... ... the contracting agent shall award the contract after soliciting at least two competitive quotations, if practicable."

We conducted a compliance review of the procedures and policies for securing quotations for purchases referred to above which indicated that the procedures were implemented to ensure statutory compliance and that quotes had been solicited as required by the statute.

FOLLOW-UP OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, our procedures included a review of all prior year findings. There were no prior year audit findings.

FINDINGS/RECOMMENDATIONS

None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We desire to express our appreciation for the assistance and courtesies rendered by the District officials during the course of the audit.

The foregoing comments are not of sufficient materiality whereby they would affect our ability to express an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Should any questions arise as to our comments please contact us at your earliest opportunity.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *